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Joanna Lech 

The acting Director of the 

Center for European Union 

Transport Projects

Foreword

This year marks the end of the current financial perspective  

of the European Union planned for 2014-2020. For the Centre for 

EU Transport Projects this means intensive work in three areas.  

A key part of our activity will be the further distribution of the 

funds that remain from the Infrastructure and Environment, 

Eastern Poland programmes, and the Connecting Europe Facility. 

The second area – equally important – is the correct settlement 

 of projects implemented by our beneficiaries, and the third will  

be to prepare for the new perspective.

In the transport sector, where the CEUTP is an intermediary 

 or implementing institution, we have contracted almost 90%  

of the funds, signed over 300 agreements with beneficiaries.  

By the end of the perspective in 2023, agreements for the 

remaining funds will be signed, which will allow for 100% of  

the allocation to be consumed.  
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The current budget of the European Union for transport 

projects coordinated by the CEUTP amounts to a total 

of approximately PLN 104 billion*, including about PLN 

85.76 billion under the OPI&E 2014-2020, PLN 16.75 

billion under the CEF and nearly PLN 1.7 billion under 

the OPEP.

This year, the pandemic had a significant impact on the 

implementation of projects co-financed from EU funds. 

It was necessary to introduce new mechanisms for 

cooperation with beneficiaries. Thanks to the immediate 

actions of the European Commission and the Ministry 

of the Funds and Regional Policy, the existing legal 

and time framework for the implemented projects was 

made more flexible and additional funds for protection 

against COVID-19. They have been supplied to many 

beneficiaries including the Polish Fire Service and the 

Police. The new, relaxed guidelines for the beneficiaries 

allowed for safe implementation of the projects while 

avoiding excessive delays or losses.  

CEUTP experts monitor the implementation status  

of individual projects on an ongoing basis and 

maintain contact with beneficiaries, also providing  

the necessary support.

Among the projects supported by CEUTP many are 

implemented very efficiently despite their complexity. 

On the basis of selected investments it is worth 

indicating the benefits of EU funding for each of us.

*Calculated according to the average exchange rate of the National Bank of Poland (NBP) from August 2020. 5



The CEUTP in the system of distribution of EU funds for transport investments 

EU Cohesion Policy in Poland
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European Structural and Investment Funds (ESIF)

The European Regional Development Fund (ERDF) 

– its objective is to reduce the disparities between the 

levels of development of the regions of the Union and to 

strengthen the economic, social and territorial cohesion 

of the EU as a whole. The fund provides i.a. the support 

for production and infrastructure investments and the 

support to small and medium-sized enterprises.

The European Social Fund (ESF) – its main objective 

is to combat unemployment in the Member States. 

ESF money increase opportunities for employment and 

education. It co-finances support for various regions 

and social groups, in particular for people at risk of 

poverty and young people entering the labour market.

The Cohesion Fund (CF) – is intended for  Member  

States  the per capita gross national income (GNI) 

of which is  less  than  90% of the EU average. Its 

aim is to reduce economic and social disparities and 

promote sustainable development, mainly through 

major investments in transport infrastructure and 

environmental protection.

The European Agricultural Fund for Rural Development 

(EAFRD) – it supports the restructuring of the agriculture 

and supports the development of rural areas.

The European Maritime and Fisheries Fund (EMFF) 

– it supports the restructuring of the Member States’ 

fishing industries. 

EU Cohesion Policy in Poland
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In addition to these funds, a part of the expenditures 

from the    EU budget is intended for specific purposes. 

They are carried out through additional investment 

funds, including the European Union Solidarity Fund 

and the Instrument for Pre-Accession Assistance, 

which provides support to candidate countries and 

potential candidates to the EU.

EU Cohesion Policy in Poland
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EU Cohesion Policy in Poland

Waldemar Buda, 

The Secretary  

of State at the Ministry 

of Development Funds  

and Regional Policy
Photo: MDFRP

„Cohesion policy has been helping to promote 

new investments in Poland for several years now. 

Also in the new perspective, we will be ensuring 

long-term economic growth through well-considered 

investment of money from the state budget and 

cohesion policy. Poland will still be one of the largest 

beneficiaries of cohesion policy in the entire European 

Union. This means an uninterrupted source of 

cofinancing for large projects which are important for 

the country. We will invest these funds in transport, 

energy, entrepreneurship, environmental protection 

and digitisation, among other things.”.

Distribution of EU funds in 2014–2020
(in EUR, current values)

Source: Ministry of Investment 
and Economic Development

Poland is the biggest 

beneficiary of EU cohesion 

policy. In 2014-2020 the 

European Union has allocated 

EUR 82.5  billion  for our  

country. The distribution  

of funds and the directions of 

their use were discussed and 

agreed upon with the various 

partners by the central and 

local authorities.

Source: MFiPR
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EU Cohesion Policy in Poland
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The results of EU funds usage in transport

Source: The CEUTP



Support for transport

Andrzej Adamczyk,

Minister of Infrastructure:
Photo: MI

“I am convinced that thanks to the government’s 

determination and efficient use of EU funds we 

will create a coherent transport system for our 

country. We are actively seeking to ensure that 

key road sections of the project, such as the  

Via Carpatia route, are integrated into the  

TEN-T core network.”

Transport in programmes

Operational Programme Infrastructure and 

Environment (OPI&E)

http://www.pois.gov.pl/en/

Operational Programme Eastern Poland (OPEP)

https://www.polskawschodnia.gov.pl/en

“Connecting Europe” Facility – CEF

http://www.funduszeeuropejskie.gov.pl/en/

EU Cohesion Policy in Poland
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Regional Operational Programmes 2014-2020:

http://www.funduszeeuropejskie.gov.pl/en/

http://ec.europa.eu/regional_policy/en/

Two territorial instruments are a novelty in comparison 

to the previous programming period:

Integrated Territorial Investments (ITI) – ITI are 

encouraged to use financial resources from different 

funds:

https://www.funduszeeuropejskie.gov.pl/en/

The European Territorial Cooperation and European 

Neighbourhood Instrument programmes:

The Central Europe Transnational Cooperation 

Programme 

The Baltic Sea Transnational Cooperation Programme

The Interreg Europa International Cooperation Programme

http://www.ewt.gov.pl/en/

Horizon 2020 – scientific research and in- novation 

for the years 2014-2020  One of the priorities is 

“smart, clean and integrated transport”:

http://en.kpk.gov.pl/l

https://www.nauka.gov.pl/en/

The European Fund for Strategic Investments, under 

the Investment Plan for Europe – the so- called 

Juncker’s plan (repayable instrument):

https://ec.europa.eu/commission/priorities/jobs-growth-

and-investment/investment-plan-europe-juncker-plan_en

http://www.miir.gov.pl/en/

EU Cohesion Policy in Poland
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Operational Programme Infrastructure and Environment 2014-2020 

Programmes executed by the CEUTP

Waldemar Buda, 

The Secretary  
of State at the Ministry 
of Development Funds  
and Regional Policy

Photo: MDFRP

„The budget of the Infrastructure and Environment 

Programme 2014-2020, which is the largest programme 

in Europe implemented with the support of EU funds, is 

around PLN 120 billion. EU and national funds contribute 

to the development of rail, road, urban, maritime and 

intermodal transport. Over 70 percent of the total OPI&E 

budget are undertakings supporting the development of 

transport projects that are important for the region of Central 

and Eastern Europe, such as Via Baltica or Via Carpatia 

route, for Poland as a country, but also important locally.”.

Operational Programme Infrastructure and 

Environment 2014-2020 is the largest European 

Union programme financed by the European Funds. 

It continues the assumptions of OPI&E 2007-2013. 

Goal: The programme is also part of the Europe 2020 

strategy, the key objective of which is to support a 

resource-efficient, environmentally friendly and socially 

inclusive economy that fosters territorial and social 

cohesion.

Budget: EUR 27.4 billion, including for transport – EUR 

19.8 billion.

The main areas, for which funding is provided, are: 

low-emission economy, environmental protection, 

climate change mitigation and adaptation, transport 

and energy security, health care and cultural heritage.
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Programmes executed by the CEUTP

The Programme finances infrastructural projects of 

national or international importance  The support can 

be used in two ways: actively – as a project executor or 

participant or as a user of the infrastructure, which was 

built thanks to co-financing from the European Funds.

Until the end of July 2020, within the Operational 

Programme Infrastructure and Environment, the 

CEUTP signed 299 agreements on cofinancing with 

beneficiaries for the total amount of EU co-financing of 

PLN 74.8 billion. This constitutes 87% of Programme 

funds used.

EU approved payments totaled PLN 42 billion.

OPI&E 2014-2020 structure in the transport sector

14

*  The value of EU funds – as of August 31, 2019, calculated

according to the exchange rate applicable for August 2020.
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Fast and safe railway traffic in Łódź

Programmes executed by the CEUTP RAIL

Project name:  Restoring the capacity of the 

Łódź Railway Junction (TEN-T), Stage II, Section 

Łódź Fabryczna – Łódź Kaliska/Łódź Żabieniec

Total value of the project:  

PLN 1 760 713 064

EU co-financing amount: PLN 1 219 254 777

Beneficiary:  PKP Polskie Linie Kolejowe S.A

Photo: mapadotacji.pl

As part of the project, a railway line will be built inside a tunnel, which 

will make the junction more accessible, which in effect will shorten the 

time of trains passing through the Łódź Railway Junction. The new 

railway connection between the Łódź Kaliska/Łódź Żabieniec and the 

Łódź Fabryczna station will allow to extend the transport offer in the 

city, replace parts of car traffic with rail transport, introduce higher 

environmental protection standards, eliminate architectural barriers for 

the disabled, increase the level of safety of road traffic in the city.  

It will also provide another impulse for economic development at 

regional and national level. The project involving restoration of the Łódź 

Railway Junction’s capacity is a part of a larger undertaking consisting 

of its modernization. Just like the city of Łódź, the junction is located in 

the TEN-T core network on one of the routes of the Baltic Sea – Adriatic 

Sea transport corridor. 
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Olsztyn increases the comfort of its residents by upgrading roads

Project name:  Construction of the Olsztyn  

ring road within DK No. 16

Total value of the project:  

PLN 473 491 300

EU co-financing amount:  

PLN 367 706 575

Beneficiary:  General Directorate for National 

Roads and Motorways

Photo: GDDKiA

Reducing traffic congestion, noise and exhaust emissions on 

alternative roads are the key effects of building a bypass, raising 

the standard of living of local communities. The investment has 

also relieved the city of excessive road and transit traffic, and has 

resulted in a safe road section with high parameters. The new 

bypass provides high comfort of long-distance high speed road 

traffic, improving transport accessibility of Poland and interregional 

connections within the TEN-T network. The level of users’ safety has 

also been increased in order to maintain the interoperability of the 

created transport infrastructure, by adapting the road to the existing 

legal regulations for class „S”, „GP” roads. The mobility of people and 

goods within the framework of inter-regional exchange and beyond 

the borders of the Warmińsko-Mazurskie Voivodeship, as well as 

beyond national borders, will increase.

Programmes executed by the CEUTPROADS
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Góra Kalwaria with a safe bypass

Programmes executed by the CEUTP

Project name:  Construction of the Góra  

Kalwaria bypass within Dk 50 and 79

Total value of the project:  

PLN 419 850 219

EU co-financing amount:  

PLN 254 220 472

Beneficiary:  General Directorate for National 

Roads and Motorways

Photo: GDDKiA

The project will improve the standard of living of local communities 

by reducing traffic congestion, noise and exhaust emissions on 

alternative roads. The level of road and non-mechanized traffic 

safety and driving comfort and smoothness will be increased. 

Along with the construction of the 9 km section of the bypass, 

road junctions, single-level crossings, viaducts, flyovers, a bridge, 

culverts, a pedestrian underpass, noise barriers and protective 

barriers were created. 

The investment will improve the transport accessibility of Poland 

and interregional links within the TEN-T network. This will increase 

the EU’s external competitiveness and internal economic, social and 

territorial cohesion. 

ROADS
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The Gliwice bypass will improve the quality of life of residents

Project name:  Construction of the road section 

from ul. Daszyńskiego to ul. Rybnicka in Gliwice 

– western part of the city bypass

Total value of the project:

PLN 122 366 413

EU co-financing amount: PLN 87 681 274

Beneficiary:  City of Gliwice

Photo: mapadotacji.pl

The main objective of the project is to increase the city’s transport 

accessibility by moving heavy goods traffic out of the area of 

residential and service buildings and linking investment areas 

located in the special economic zone. 

The bypass will contribute to increasing the accessibility of 

investment areas, reducing car congestion in the city, improving 

traffic flow and reducing the negative impact of transport on the 

natural environment. Thus, it will improve comfort, health and quality 

of life in Gliwice.

The project will contribute to increasing accessibility and investment 

attractiveness of Silesia by improving the road network.

Programmes executed by the CEUTPROADS
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Integrated road infrastructure in Bielsko-Biała

Programmes executed by the CEUTP

Project name: Extension of DK 52  

(ul. Krakowska / ul. Żywiecka) in Bielsko-Biała 

Total value of the project:  

PLN 103 203 861

EU co-financing amount:  

PLN 84 403 900

Beneficiary: City of Bielsko-Biała

Photo: UM Bielsko-Biała

The project will contribute to the reduction of travel time and 

increase the fluidity of vehicle traffic, especially heavy vehicles, by 

adapting the road to the appropriate load capacity parameters and 

by separating lanes for left-hand turn. Inhabitants of the areas in the 

road corridor will notice the reduction of environmental nuisance in 

the form of reduced noise and toxic exhaust gas components. New 

pavements on both sides, pedestrian crossings with asylums and 

active signs will increase traffic safety. On the other hand, thanks to 

the improvement of traffic flow on state road no. 52 – the exit route 

towards Małopolska – the transport accessibility of the city will 

increase. The functionality of the road system will be enhanced by 

full integration of the urban infrastructure with the TEN-T network 

(S 69), districts of Bielsko-Biała and surrounding towns, service 

points along the road, as well as PKP railway stations.

ROADS
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Zielona Góra with low-emission transport

Project name:  Integrated low-carbon public 

transport system in Zielona Góra 

Total value of the project:  

PLN 284 825 841

EU co-financing amount:  

PLN 182 350 698

Beneficiary:  City of Zielona Góra

Photo: MZK Zielona Góra

A stopover center and a modern bus fleet are two key elements of 

the low-emission project. The center will integrate urban transport, 

i.e. bus and rail transport, into a single junction, contributing to 

increased mobility. It will function as a junction for travelers, handling 

local, regional, interregional and international traffic. By replacing 

the diesel bus fleet with a mixed fleet, it will be possible to reduce 

noise and improve air quality by minimizing pollutant emissions and 

reducing greenhouse gases within the city. 

Programmes executed by the CEUTPURBAN TRANSPORT



21

Gorzów Wielkopolski with a modern fleet of trams

Programmes executed by the CEUTP

Project name: Sustainable Urban Transport 

System in Gorzów Wielkopolski - tram rolling 

stock and technical infrastructure 

Total value of the project: PLN 123 653 167

EU co-financing amount: PLN 74 623 731

Beneficiary: Miejski Zakład Komunikacji 

(Municipal Transport Company) in Gorzów 

Wielkopolski

Photo: Bartłomiej Nowosielski UM Gorzów Wlkp.

The modern, low-floor tram rolling stock delivered as part of the 

project is friendly for all people with reduced mobility, both for people 

with disabilities and people with prams. The air-conditioned interiors 

are equipped with passenger information systems, ticket vending 

machines, passenger counting systems, as well as Wi-Fi and USB 

charger sockets. The project has increased the attractiveness of public 

transport by reducing travel time between stops and improving safety 

and comfort for travelers. Line no. 1, on which the Twists ride, leads 

from the MZK depot at ul. Kostrzyńska, down Aleja 11 listopada, 

ul. Sikorskiego, ul. Warszawska, ul. Pomorska i ul. Walczaka to the 

terminus at “Silwan”. Giving up individual transport, and thus increasing 

the number of people using public transport, will lead to a reduction in 

CO2 emissions, a reduction in the negative impact on the environment 

and the city’s inhabitants, and an increase in energy efficiency of the 

transport system as a whole. 

URBAN TRANSPORT
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Privileges for pedestrians and cyclists in Poznań

Project name:  Centrum Programme – stage 

I reconstruction of tram routes together with 

calming the car traffic in the streets: Św. Marcin, 

Fredry, Mielżyńskiego, 27 grudnia, Pl. Wolności, 

Towarowa 

Total value of the project: PLN 100 000 000

EU co-financing amount: PLN 45 422 764

Beneficiary:  Poznań – city with poviat rights

Photo: Poznańskie Inwestycje Miejskie

The reconstruction of streets and sidewalks in a large part of 

the city center along with the modernization of tram tracks and 

the construction of a new tram route is to serve pedestrians and 

cyclists. The new tram route, new bicycle paths and green enclaves, 

even and wide pavements – it is all for them. The modern tram 

infrastructure, including stops, will also be accessible to people with 

disabilities through the use of modern technical solutions, such as 

the use of appropriate height of stop platforms adapted to the height 

of the floor in low-floor trams, the use of guide lines and tactile flags 

leading through pedestrian crossings. 

The project will indirectly contribute to the objectives of the EU 

Strategy for the Baltic Sea Region, as with the increased share  

of rail transport in passenger transport will come a reduction of CO2 

emissions, which is one of the implementation indicators in  

the strategy. 

Programmes executed by the CEUTPURBAN TRANSPORT
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Gulf of Gdansk and Vistula Lagoon with modern navigation

Programmes executed by the CEUTP

Photo: Maritime Office in Gdynia

Project name: Integrated navigation marking 

system with e-Navigation elements 

Total value of the project:  

PLN 43 214 094

EU co-financing amount:  

PLN 36 730 117

Beneficiary: Maritime Office in Gdynia

Navigation marking system in the area of the ports: Gdynia, 

Gdańsk, Hel, Władysławowo, Elbląg, Puck, the Gulf of Gdańsk  

and Puck, the Hel Peninsula region and the southern, central  

and eastern coasts have been upgraded to current technical, IT 

and radio capabilities and environmental protection requirements.  

This change will contribute to increasing the competitiveness 

of Polish seaports, improving their functioning and increasing 

shipping safety.  

The project also reconstructed the Navigation Marking Database 

and modernized the technical infrastructure, and it created tools  

to establish a national e-Navigation system. 

The project is complementary to the objectives of the EU Strategy 

for the Baltic Sea Region.

SEA PORTS
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Gdańsk Port Północny available for larger vessels

Project name: Modernization of the waterway  

to Port Północny in Gdańsk

Total value of the project:  

PLN 153 911 808

EU co-financing amount:  

PLN 130 792 454

Beneficiary: Maritime Office in Gdynia

Photo: Maritime Office in Gdynia

Thanks to the implementation of the project, the existing track 

has gained new technical parameters enabling two-way sailing. 

Currently, tankers and container ships can enter and leave the Port 

at the same time. As part of the modernization of the waterway, 

the collected sandy excavated material was used for artificial 

supply of the sea shore. In total, about 4 million cubic meters of 

sand have been deposited on the beaches of the Gulf of Gdansk 

and the northern beaches by the open sea over a distance of about 

15 km. The protection of the sea shore was reinforced in Jelitkowo, 

Jastrzębia Góra, Ostrów, Kuźnica, Stegna, Sztutowo, Westerplatte 

and the Hel Peninsula.

Programmes executed by the CEUTPSEA PORTS
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New ships will secure Polish seaports

Programmes executed by the CEUTP

Project name:  

Construction of two multi-purpose vessels

Total value of the project:  

PLN 217 564 088

EU co-financing amount:  

PLN 184 722 988

Beneficiary: Maritime Office in Szczecin

Photo: Maritime Office in Szczecin

Two modern units will be operated in the areas of territorial 

jurisdiction of the Maritime Offices in Szczecin and Gdynia, as well 

as in the entire Baltic Sea. The vessels will serve as icebreakers, be 

used for placement of navigational markings, as towing ships, in 

hydrographic work and combating oil spills. They will also be able 

to serve as rescue and fire-fighting units, assisting other services in 

these tasks. Multi-purpose ships will ensure the safety of navigation 

and meet international requirements, increasing the interest in 

ports among foreign and domestic shipowners, and broadening the 

tourist offer. The project is complementary to the objectives of the 

EU Strategy for the Baltic Sea Region.

SEA PORTS
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Moving the transport of goods from road to rail

Project name:  

Project for development of intermodal links 

thanks to the purchase of locomotives

Total value of the project:  

PLN 94 162 269

EU co-financing amount: PLN 38 282 427

Beneficiary: Laude Smart Intermodal S.A.

Photo: Laude Smart Intermodal S.A.

Under the implemented project, the purchased locomotives will go 

to the beneficiary’s fleet, which will transport goods by rail to an 

even greater extent, developing intermodal transport. Such action 

will have a positive impact on the development and integration of 

multimodal transport system branches and will promote sustainable 

transport and improve road safety and reduce noise levels.  

The increase of the rolling stock is part of the beneficiary’s wider 

development strategy aimed at optimizing the transport of the 

freight currently carried by road between EU countries and  

Eastern Europe.

Programmes executed by the CEUTPINTERMODAL TRANSPORT 



27

Operational Programme Eastern Poland 2014-2020 

Programmes executed by the CEUTP

Photo: MDFRP

Małgorzata  

Jarosińska-Jedynak,  

The Secretary of State  

at the Ministry  

of Development Funds  

and Regional Policy

„Well-invested European Funds make Eastern 

Poland increasingly accessible in terms of 

transport. The investments serve the inhabitants 

and local business. The benefits of these 

investments are also appreciated  

by guests, tourists and increasingly numerous 

investors.”

Priority III: Supraregional Railway 
Infrastructure

Operational Programme Eastern Poland  

2014-2020 (OPEP) is an instrument of financial support 

for economic and social development dedicated to five 

voivodeships in Eastern Poland: Lubelskie, Podlaskie, 

Podkarpackie, Świętokrzyskie and Warmińsko-

Mazurskie 

Goal: Increase of competitiveness and innovativeness 

of the Eastern Poland macroregion. Completion and 

reinforcement of the measures carried out within 

regional and national programs for 2014-2020, from 

which the main development projects will be financed.
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The programme supports the creation and development 

of start-ups, international activities of small and 

medium-sized enterprises, creation of innovative 

products or services, skillful design management within 

a company, public transport, roads and railways. 

The budget for Priority Axis III Supraregional Railway 

Infrastructure, Measure 3 1  Railway infrastructure: 

EUR 377 million. 

One of the goals of the OPEP is the reinforcement of 

internal and supplementation of external links in rail 

transport in Eastern Poland according to the provisions 

of the Strategy for socioeconomic development 

of Eastern Poland until 2020. The investments 

implemented under the III Priority Axis (measure 3.1) 

are carried out under the so-called Eastern Trunk Line, 

which is the concept of connecting the voivodeship 

capital cities from Eastern Poland in the field of rail 

transport. 

Projects under the 3.1 measure are carried out by PKP 

Polskie Linie Kolejowe S.A., five of them in cooperation 

with PKP S.A.

The Centre for EU Transport Projects plays the role  

of an intermediary institution – it is responsible for 

the implementation of projects carried out under 

priority Axis III 

Programmes executed by the CEUTP
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Białystok and Bielsk Podlaski with modern railway station buildings  

Programmes executed by the CEUTP

Photo: PKP S.A.
Project name: Works on railway line no. 32 on 

the section Białystok – Bielsk Podlaski (Lewki)

Total value of the project: PLN 124 553 816

EU co-financing amount: PLN 85 939 192 

Beneficiary: PKP Polskie Linie Kolejowe S.A. 

Entity authorized to incur eligible expenditure: 

Polskie Koleje Państwowe S.A.

The project allowed the rehabilitation of a 46 km long railway 

line and the reconstruction of railway station buildings in Bielsko 

Podlaskie and Białystok. In the second of these cities, the original 

interior design was restored as part of the investment, including 

such elements as wall and ceiling decorations, cast-iron pillars and 

decorative flooring. Thus, the interior of the building alludes with 

its appearance to the one from around 1910. Restoration of the 

building’s historic appearance – by exposing its architectural and 

historic values – was combined with adaptation of the building to 

the needs of people with reduced mobility, including travelers with 

disabilities.

RAIL



The “Connecting Europe” Facility – CEF is a new financial instrument that replaced the 
previous TEN-T programme 

Goal: Support for the development of three areas – the 

transport, energy and telecommunications networks. 

Budget: The available pool for investment in the 

transport sector for EU beneficiaries amounts to more 

than EUR 24 billion, EUR 11.3 billion of which came 

from the Cohesion Fund and can only be requested by 

cohesion countries. The funds from the cohesion pool 

were allocated through CEF contest (calls for proposals 

2014, 2015 and 2016).

Poland has also submitted applications for funding 

under the following contests: 2016 CEF Synergy, 

2017 CEF Blending, 2017 CEF SESAR, 2018 CEF 

Transport and 2019 CEF Transport.

In February 2020, the recruitment was completed for 

projects in 2019 CEF Transport MAP competition. 

Part of funds distributed under this competition are 

funds not used so far under cohesive pool. Currently 

are  being submitted applications for the 2019 CEF 

Blending recruitment. The end of the call for proposals is 

scheduled for March 31, 2021.

“Connecting Europe” Facility is intended to contribute 

to sustainable growth  This growth will foster social 

integration through the creation of modern high-

efficiency trans-European networks. Such an  

initiative will benefit the European Union as a whole. 

This concerns both increasing competitiveness  

and economic, social and territorial cohesion.  

Programmes executed by the CEUTP
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An additional value will be the creation of an 

environment more favorable to private and public 

investment by combining their financial resources and 

direct support from the European Union. The results 

will be measured by the number of public and private 

investments involved in projects of common interest.

The Fund is also intended to help EU countries to 

achieve the so-called 20-20-20 objectives, set out in 

the Europe 2020 Strategy, i.e.:

 � reduction of CO2 emissions by at least 20% 

compared to 1990 levels,

 � increase of the share of renewable energy 

sources in relation to total energy consumption 

by 20%,

 � increase of energy use efficiency by 20%.

Programmes executed by the CEUTP

The given values refer to projects for which Grant 

Agreements (GA) have been signed. In the course of 2019 

CEF Transport MAP call, 4 more projects were selected for 

which GA is planned to be signed.

Source: CEUTP
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Modern docking system in Świnoujście

Photo: Szczecin and Swinoujscie Seaports 

Authority SA

Project name: Sweden-Poland Sustainable 

Sea-Hinterland Services III

Total value of the project: EUR 180 000

EU co-financing amount: EUR 84 000 

Beneficiary: Szczecin and Swinoujscie 

Seaports Authority SA

The project was carried out in partnership with the Port of Trelleborg 

and the shipowner TT-Line AB. As part of this project, a pilot Port 

Navigation Docking System (PNDS) was implemented in the Ferry 

Terminal in Świnoujście. It aims to increase the safety and reliability 

of ferries to the quay, where maneuvering is often very demanding 

due to difficult weather conditions in the area. The system uses two 

laser scanners to determine the exact position, sends information 

wirelessly to the maneuvering ferry and displays it on a ship’s tablet. 

Operation of the pilot-dock system for port navigation is also pro-

environmental. Efficient and quicker mooring means less exhaust 

and noise emissions to the environment.

Programmes executed by the CEUTPSEA PORTS
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Rail Baltica – Polish section in modernization

Programmes executed by the CEUTP

Project name: Works on the E75 railway line, 

Czyżew – Białystok section (phase I)

Estimated total value of the project:  

PLN 1 584 079 935

Estimated value of the EU grant: 

PLN 1 207 068 912

Beneficiary: PKP PLK S.A. 

Photo: PKP PLK. S.A.

The E75 railway line is a component of a priority project in the 

North Sea-Baltic Corridor, operating under the name of “Rail 

Baltica”, which aims to create a single railway corridor connecting 

Helsinki via Tallinn, Riga and Kaunas with Warsaw. This is 

a priority EU project which is of great political and strategic 

importance as it will be the only rail link between the Baltic States 

and Poland and the rest of the European Union with a track gauge 

of 1435 mm. As part of the project, the section Czyżew-Białystok 

with a total length of about 71 km located in the Podlaskie 

Voivodeship will be modernized. 

RAIL
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Programmes executed by the CEUTP

Projects in Poland by sectors – CEF contests in the years:  
2014, 2015, and 2016 (Transport oraz CEF Synergy),  
2017 (CEF Blending, 2017 CEF SESAR), 2018 (CEF Transport) and 
2019 (CEF Transport) – amount of UE financing:

rail EUR 3 181 69 million

roads EUR 503 52 million

maritime EUR 178 25 million

SESAR/airspace manager’s infrastructure EUR 13 08 million

alternative fuels EUR 7 03 million

intermodal EUR 0 59 million
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CEUTP’s role: from preparation of an application to completion 

We have many years worth of experience in the process of implementation of EU funds 

At every stage of execution of a project the beneficiaries can count on our professional support and consulting.

Support for beneficiaries
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Support for beneficiaries ITM

Integrated Traffic Model

The Centre for EU Transport Projects is undertaking 

work to develop the National Transport Model.  

The tool is designed to optimize the strategic planning 

process in the transport sector and as a support 

instrument for meeting the EU conditions for regarding 

transport investments in the 2021-2027 financial 

perspective. 

The National Transport Model is a 4-step model, 

comprising of the road network, public transport network 

including rail an buses, inland waterways network, 

seaports and airports. 

The National Model is further divided into smaller 

transport analysis zones corresponding to the 

administrative division of Poland at the gmina level.  

The base model is built for 2015 and 2019 using 

PTV VISUM software. The forecasting model is being 

developed for years 2025, 2030 and further horizons. 

The project work is carried out in cooperation with 

the consulting company Arup Polska sp. z o.o., as well 

as with external experts from Poland and abroad, 

including representatives of the relevant Ministries and 

JASPERS Initiative. Full functionality of the passenger 

National Transport Model is planned to be achieved  

by the end of 2020.
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Transport Research Observatory

In 2017, the Transport Research Observatory (TOB) 

was established at the CEUTP. As intended, it 

provides an opportunity to develop good practices 

and exchange knowledge and experience between 

the various stakeholders involved in the preparation 

and implementation of transport projects. It supports 

the construction of an evaluation system and current 

monitoring of development processes taking place in the 

country and the effects of transport policy in the national 

and regional perspective. So far, the TRO has addressed 

topics arising from the needs of the CEUTP or those 

indicated by participants. 10 meetings were held, 

concerning, among others, the environmental impact 

of transport, accessibility of transport for people with 

reduced mobility, smart transport systems, integrated 

traffic patterns, cycling as a means of transport.  

The result is also 3 publications. Further actions are 

planned. Details of the work done so far and the latest 

news are available at www.cupt.gov.pl 

The TRO’s tasks are carried out in cooperation 

with representatives of state and local government 

administration, not only state administration, OPI&E 

and JASPERS beneficiaries, the scientific community, 

business and non-governmental organizations. 

Support for beneficiaries TRO

https://ec.europa.eu/commission/priorities/jobs-growth-and-investment/investment-plan-europe-juncker-plan_en
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Support for beneficiaries

JASPERS Initiative (Joint Assistance to Support Projects in European Regions)

The JASPERS INITIATIVE is an undertaking of the 

European Commission, the European Investment  

Bank and the European Bank for Reconstruction and 

Develop- ment. Its full name is the Joint Assistance 

to Support Projects in European Regions. It was 

established in 2005. JASPERS has been operating 

in Poland since 2006 and the Warsaw office of the 

Initiative was opened in 2007.

Scope of support

JASPERS helps in the preparation of pro- jects applying 

for co-financing from EU funds. The initiative enables  

the European Commission and other involved institutions 

to share experience with Member States on how to 

utilize EU investment funds more efficiently.

Consultancy at the stage of project preparation 

(JASPERS Advisory) includes: 

�

�

�

�

verification of project documentation, including     

the application for co-financing, feasibility 

study with the choice of option, environmental 

documentation, cost-benefit analysis, financial 

analysis,

analysis of the problem issues identified by the 

beneficiary,

support of the development of public procurement 

documentation,

support during concept works.



39

Support for beneficiaries

Useful links and contact points

European Funds  https://www.funduszeeuropejskie.gov.pl/en/

Map of European Union Grants  http://www.mapadotacji.gov.pl/en

Official European Union portal  http://europa.eu/

Ministry of Development Funds and Regional Policy  https:// https://www.gov.pl/web/ 
funds-regional-policy

Centre for European Transport Projects  https://www.cupt.gov.pl/en/

European Commission https://ec.europa.eu/

JASPERS Initiative http://jaspers.eib.org/

https://www.funduszeeuropejskie.gov.pl/en/
http://www.mapadotacji.gov.pl/en
http://europa.eu/
https://www.gov.pl/web/
https://www.cupt.gov.pl/en/
https://ec.europa.eu/
http://jaspers.eib.org/
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